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BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT REGARDING
THE RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR 3 (THREE) MONTHS PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31, 2016
PT MINDA ASEAN AUTOMOTIVE AND SUBSIDJARY

Ve, the undersigned: .

Name : LILA DHAR AGRAWAL

Office Address : JI. Permata Raya Lot CA/7 Kawasan Industri KIC, Sukaluyw
Teluk Jambe, Karawang 41361, West Java

Residential Address : Taman Kemayoran Gondominium, Tower Cendana 20/05
Jakarta Pusat

Telephone : (0267) 418701, 419702

Title : Director

declare that;

1. We are responsible for the preparation and presentation of PT Minda Asean Automotive and
subsidiary's consolidated financial statements;

2. PT Minda Asean Automotive and subsidiary’s consolidated financial statements have been prepared
and presented in accordance with Indonesia financial accounting standard;

3. a. All information in the PT Minda Asean Automotive and subsidiary's consolidated financial
statements has been disclosed in a complete and truthful manner;
b. PT Minda Asean Automotive and subsidiary’s consoiidated financial statements do not contain
any incorrect information or material fact, nor do they omit information or material fact:

4. We are responsible for PT Minda Asean Automotive and subsidiary’s internal control system.

Thus this statement is made truthfully,

Jakarta, April 29, 2016

rd

M

For and behalf of the Board of Directors /

-.
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Amir Abadi Jusuf, Aryanto, Mawar & Rekan
Registered Publlc Accountants

RSMIndonesia

Number : R/392.AGA/bna.3/2016 Plaza ASIA. Level {0
) Jend. Sudirman¥av.59

Jakarta 12190 Indonesia

- T+62 2151401340
F +62 2151401350
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Independent Auditors’ Report

The Shareholders, Commissioner and Directors
PT Minda Asean Automotive

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of PT Minda Asean Automotive {"the
Company”} and its subsidiary, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of March 31,
2016, and the consolidated statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity,
and cash flows flows for the 3 (three) months period then ended and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s responsibility for the consolidated financial statments

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Indonesian Financiai Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated finacial statements that are
free from material misstatment, whether due to fraud or error,

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing established by the Indonesian Institute of
Certified Pubtic Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit fo obtain reasonable assurance ahout whether the consolidated financial statements are

free from material misstatement.

An audit involes performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those riks assessments, we consider internal control relevant o the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal confrol. An audit also includes evaluating the approriateness of
accountiing policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated finacial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have aobtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

THE POWER OF BEING UNDERSTOOD
AUDIT j TAX | CONSULTING

RSM Indonesiais amembar of the R3M network snd trades as RS R3Mis the trading name used by the members sf the RSM netwark. Licence; KKK Mo, 477 Kk 1/ 2015
Each member of the REM netwao-Kis an indenend_ent accounting ama cons i firm wiich practices inits oved right. Registered at bhe Indoresia
The REMnetwok s not itsell a separate legal enbiby Inany jurisdiction. Financial Servlces Authaor ty (o
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Amir Abadi Jusuf, Aryanto, Mawar & Rekan

Opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of PT Minda Asean Automotive and its subsidiary as of March 31, 2016, and
their consolidated financial performance and cash flows for the 3 {three} months period then ended, in
accordance with Indonesian Financial Acecounting Standards.

Emphasis of matter

As disclosed in Note 2.a of the accompanying consolidated financial statements, this consolidated financial
statements is prepared for the purposes of change of financial year. Accordingly, the consolidated financial
statements are presented with comparison for 3 (three) months ended March 31, 2016 (the fourth quarter of
the year begin from April 1, 2015) and for the year ended December 31, 2015. Our opinicn is not modified in
respect of this matter. y

Amir Abadi Jusuf, Aryanto, Mawar & Rekan

&/VL—L.—\,_. —

Benny Andria
Public Accountant License Number: AP.0181

Jakarta, April 29, 2016 .

-
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PT MINDA ASEAN AUTOMOTIVE AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As of March 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015
(In Full of Rupiah}

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalenls
Trade Receivables ;
Related Paities
Third Parlies
Inventories
Prepaid Tax
Prepaid Expenses
Advances
Other Receivables from Third Parlies

Total Current Asseats

NON CURRENT ASSETS
Property, Plant and Equipment
Deferred Tax Assels

Other Assets

Total Mon Current Assels

TOTAL ASSETS .

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Short-Term Bank Loans -
Trade Payables
Related Parlies
Third Parties
Other Payables to Third Parties
Taxes Payable
Accrued Expenses
Current Maturities of Long-Term Bank Loans

Total Current Liakilities

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long-Term Bank Loans - Net of Current Maturities
Post-Employment Banefits Liabilities

Tatal Non Current Liabililies
Total Liabilities

EQUITY
Share Capital - Rp91,680 Par Value per Share

Authorized - 270,000 shares

Issued and Paid-Up - 106,500 Shares

as of March 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively
Foreign Exchange Rate Difference from Paid-Up Capital
Retained Earnings
Total Equity Attributable to Equity Holder of the Parent Entity
MNan-Controlling Interest

Total Equily
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

The accompanying notas form an irtegral parl of these
consolidaled financial statements

Notes March 31, 2016 December 31, 2015
Rp Rp

3 16.609,274.507 36,595,731,705
4 1,665,614,527 77,698,958
4 30,466,242,627 23,436,693,993
5 12,718,328,802 12,623,929,994
6 2,378,545,738 2,466,228,887
T 206,497 427 349,011,952
B 2,926,511,035 3,395,126,072
9 31,441,277,095 7.522.031,817
98,412,291,758 £6,466,453,377

10 58,651,238,552 60.317,168,148
6 991,229,831 005,038,801
" 66.836.454 B7,974,664
59,709,304,837 61.401,081,613

158,121,596,595 147,867,534,991
s

12 4,447 567,356 4,406,210,822
13 4,070,851,280 2,626,130,344
28,365,630,865 22,608,710,450

14 131,737,482 -
6 2,729,668,545 2,611,657,557
15 3,397.262,163 2,658,968,525
16 6,414,628,512 9,403,016,584
49,557.446,202 44,3135,694,282

16 - 108,205,374
17 3,964,919,320 3,983,755,206

3.964,919,320 4,081,960,581

53,522,365,522 48,4017,654,863

18 9,763,920,000 9.763,920.000

18 1.160,985,000 1,160.985,000

19 93.613,872,663 86,477,762,526

104,538,777,663
60,453,409

99,402 667,526
57,212,603

104,599,231.072

99,459,880,129

158,121,596,595

147,867,534,951
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PT MINDA ASEAN AUTOMOTIVE AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For 3 (Three) Months Period Ended March 31, 2016 and
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

(in Full of Rupiah)

Sales
Cost of Goods Sold
GROSS PROFIT

OPERATING EXPENSES
General and Administrafive Expenses
Selling Expenses

Total Operating Expenses
OPERATING INCOME

Other Income (Expenses) - Net
PROFIT BEFORE TAX

TAX BENEFITS (EXPENSES)
Current Tax
Defarred Tax

Total Tax Expenses

PROFIT OF THE PERICD/YEAR

-

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Itemns not to be Reclassified to Profit or Loss :

Actuarial Gain
Deferred Tax Expense

Tolal Other Comprehensive Income - net of tax

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD/YEAR

PROFIT FOR THE PERICD/YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO:

Owners of the Parent Entity
Non Controlling Interest

TOTAL

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO:

Owmer of the Parent Entity
Non-Controlling Interast

TOTAL

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial stalemants

2016

2015
Notes {3 Months) (1 Year)
Rp Rp

20 68,312,307,708 225,021,913,234
21 {50,504,395,877) (157,447 829,706}
17,717,911,832 67,574,083,528

22 {11,487,280,458) . {44,802 ,443,153)
23 (373,300,020) (3,254,833,981)
(11,860,560,479) (48,057 ,277,134)

5,857,351,363 19,516,806,393

24 702,121,131 7,276,698,800
6,5659,472,484 26,703,505,193

8 {1,744,337.417) {5,254,694,202)
) 77,522,241 303,162 488

(1.666,815,176)

{4.951,531,714)

4,892,657,308 21,841,873,479
328,924,846 541,489,002
(82,231,212) {135,372,250)
245,693,635 406,116,752
5,139,350,942 22,248,090,231

4,889,435,502
3,221,806

21,833,466,730
8,506,749

4,802,657,308

21,841,973,479

5,136,110,136 22,239,457,021
3,240,806 8,633,210
5,139,350,942 22,248,090,231
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PT MINDA ASEAN AUTOMOTIVE AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For 3 (Three) Months Period Ended March 31, 2016 and

For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

(In Full of Rupiah)

Motes Altributable to the Owner of the Parent Entlty Total Non Tetal Equity
Share Exchange Rate Ratained Controlling
Capital Differonces Earnings Interest
from Paid-Up
Capital
Rp Rp Rp Rp Rp
BALANCE AS OF JANUARY 1, 2015 9,763,920,000 1,160,985,000  70,143,873,504 44,579,303  81,117,357,697
Cash Dividends 18 - - {3.905,568,000) - (3.,905,568,000)
Profit for lhe Year - -~ 21.833,466.730 7 8506.740  21,841073.479
Olher Comprehensive Income for lhe Year -- = 405,990,292 126,461 408,116,753
BALANCE AS OF
DECEMBER 31, 2015 9,763,820,000 1,160,985,000 _ B6,477,762,526 57,212,603 _ 99.459,850,129
O N — N
Profit for the Period - - 4,889,435,502 3,221,806 4,892,657,308
Other Comprehensive Income far Lhe Period -~ -~ 246,674,635 19,000 246,693,635
BALANCE AS OF
MARCH 31, 2016 9,763,920,000 1,160,085,000  93,613,872,663 60,453,400  104,599,231,072

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
consolidated financial statemenis

-
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PT MINDA ASEAN AUTOMOTIVE AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For 3 (Three} Months Period Ended March 31, 2016 and
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

{In Fufl of Rupiah)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from Customers and Others

Paid to Suppliers, Employees, Others
Payment for Income Tax

Interest Paid for Bank Loans

Taxes Refund Received

Loan to third Parties
Net Cash Flows Provided by {Used in) Cperating Aclivities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment

Net Cash Flows Provided by (Used in) Investing Activilies

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Raceived from Bank Loan ¢

Payment of Bank Loan
Cash Dividend Paid

Net Cash Flows Used in Financing Acliﬁties

-

NET INCREASE (DECREASE] IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING
OF THE PERIOD{YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE
PERIOD/YEAR

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements

2016 2015
Notes {3 Months) (1 Year)
Rp Rp
67,276,050,222  243,659,338,251
(67.873,621,604) (202,013,178,167)
(1,822,309,777) {4,202,348,712)
(630,022,209} {2,359,535,170)
- 5,5639,237,241
(23.592,000,000) (5.726,478,400)
{16,641,993,368) 34,807,035,042
- 21,325,375,000
(498,638100)  (14,613,586,957)
(498,638,100) ©,711,788,033
- 7,360,314,154
{2,845,825,730)  (28,160,409,343)
18 -- {3,905,568,000)
{2,845,625,730)  (24,705,663,189)
(19,966,457,188) 16,613,159,886

36,995,731,705

19,782,571.819

16,609,274,507

36,595,731,705

.
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PT MINDA ASEAN AUTOMOTIVE AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For 3 (Three) Months Period Ended March 31, 2016 and

for the Years Ended December 31, 2015

(Expressed in Rupiah})

1.

General

The Company Establishment

PT Minda Asean Automotive (“the Company”} is a limited liability company established in Indonesia
within the framework of the Foreign Capital Investment Law No.1 Year 1967 jo No.11 Year 1970. The
approval of Foreign Capital Investment was stated in the approval letter of the Chairman of Capital
Investment Coordinating Board No.510/I/PMA/2004 dated August 2, 2004. The Company's Article of
Association was stated in the Notarial Deed of Haji Dana Sasmita, SH, No. 4 dated August 3, 2004,
and approved by Ministry of Justice in its decision letter No. C-04131 HT.01.01.TH.2005 datad
February 18, 2005. On July 27, 2007 the Company has got The Permanent Busipess License (IUT)
based on Capital Investment Cocrdinating Board approval No.676/T/Industri/Perdagangan/2007.

The Article of Association has been amanded several times, the latest amandement was by Notarial
Deed No. 12 dated December 23, 2013 of Kokoh Henry, SH., MKn, in relation to the increase in the
Company’s issued and paid-up capital. The approval of of Foreign Capital Investment was stated in
the approval letter of the Chairman of Capital Investment Coordinaling Board No.1971/1/IP-
PB/PMAJ2013 dated December 23, 2013. This amandmend had been approved by Minister of Law
and Human Rights through his decision letter No AHU-AH.01.10-56395 dated December 30, 2013.

In accordance with Article 3 of the Company’s Articles of Association, the purposes and objectives of
the Company are to operate in Trade, Industry, and Services.

In order to achieve the purposes and objectives, the Company may carry out the following activities:

i. To operate export-import trading and main distributor of trade goods such as automotive and
engineering parts.

il. To produce, destgn, trade spare parts and accessories for all types of two-wheeled vehicles or four
wheeled vehicles (including engineering goods parts).

ii. To operate management consultancy services, consulting and advice on business development,
design and technology and manufacture of automotive components and spare parts.

The Company is domiciled at Permata Raya Lot CA-7, Kawasan Industry KIC, Karawang, Jawa Barat
41361. The Company started to operate commercially on February 18, 2005, Uitimate parent entity is
Minda Industries Limited and Minda Investment Limited.

Beard of Commissioner, Directors and Employees
The Company's Boards of Commissioner and Directors as of March 31,2016 and December 31,2015
are as follows:

March 31, 2016 December 31, 2015
Commissioner Ravi Mehra Ravi Mehra
Directors:
President Director Vikaas Bajaj Vikaas Bajaj
Director: Pawan Agarwal Pawan Agarwal
Lila Dhar Agrawal Lila Dhar Agrawal
Poothampilil Peothampilil

Muralidharan Menon Muralidharan Menon

As of March 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, the Company has 168 and 166 employees, respectively
(Unaudited).

Details of salaries and benefits for the Directors for three months period ended March 31, 2016 and for
the year December 31, 2015 amounting to Rp1,287,536,181 and Rp6,039,926,823, respectively.
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PT MINDA ASEAN AUTOMOTIVE AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)
For 3 (Three) Months Period Ended March 31, 2016 and

for the Years Ended December 31, 2015

(Expressed in Rupiah)

& @ w

: @ €. The Structure of Subsidiaries
: PT Minda Trading
3 The Company has direct ownership to PT Minda Trading (“subsidiary”) a limited liability company,
which has received an approval from Foreign Capital Investment through the approval letter of the
D Chairman of Capital Investment Coordinating Board No. 00490/1/PPM/PMA/2010 dated March 31,
- 2010. J
“.9 The Subsidiary's Article of Association was stated in the Notarial Deed of Siti Rachmayanti, SH, No. 3
) dated April 8, 2010, and approved by the Ministry of Justice and Human Right through its decision
iy letter No. AHU-19215.AH01.01.TH.2010 dated April 15, 2010, with amended by article No. 35 dated
, October 18, 2012 and approved by Minister of Law and Human Rights of the Republic of Indonesia in
'@ his decision letter No. AHU-AH-01.10-02542 dated January 31, 2013 and ammended article of
association dated 8 April 2014 and approved by Minister of Law and Human Rights of the Republic of
- Indonesia in his decision letter No.AHU-01576.40.22.2014 dated 10 April 2014, The latest amendment
was made by notarial deed of Hesti Pudjiastuti, S.H, No.6. dated June 16, 2015 related to changes in
- the composition of Director. The amendment was approved by the Minister of law and Human Right

of Republic Indonesia based on decision letter No. AHU-AH.01 .03-0942302 dated June 17, 2015.

In accordance with Article 3 of the Subsidiary's Articles of Association, the purpose and objectives of

the subsidiary is to operate in trade and services. In order to achieve the purpose and objectives, the

Subsidiary carry out the following activities:

l.  Operate export-import trading and main distributor of trade goods such as automotive and
engineering parts. .

ii.  Operate management consultancy services, consulting and advice on business development,

As of March 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, the Company's portion of ownership to the subsidiary is
99%, the other 1% is owned by Mr. Sanjay Jain.

-

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

2.a. The Statements of Compliance
The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the years ended March 31, 2016 is prepared
and presented in accordance with the Indonesian Financial Accounting Standards,

This consolidated financial statements is prepared for the purposes of change of financial year.
Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements are presented with comparison for three monihs
ended March 31, 2016 {the fourth quarter of the year begin from April 1, 2016) and for the year ended
December 31, 2015. Therefore, the Company and subsidiary has not implement the new financial
accounting standards, its amendments and interpretations which is issued for financial year beginning
January 1, 2016 (Note 29).

2.b.Basis Measurement and Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared and presented based on going concern
assumption and accrual basis of accounting, except for the consolidated statements of cash flows.
Basis of measurement in preparation of these consolidated financial statements is the historical costs
concept, except for certain accounts which have been prepared on the basis of other measurements as ‘
described in their respective policies. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the ]
consideration given in exchange for asssts.

The consalidated financial statement are prepared using accrual basis of accounting, except for ,
statement of cash flow. The statement of cash flows have been prepared by using direct method by
classfying cash flows into operating, investing, and financing activities.

The reporting currency used in the preparation of financial statement is Indonesian Rupiah, which is the
Company and its subsidiary’s functional currency.




PEIPPIIIII DI TG IDYD D

@8 @&

PT MINDA ASEAN AUTOMOTIVE AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {(Continued)
For 3 (Three) Months Period Ended March 31, 2016 and

for the Years Ended December 31, 2015

(Expressed in Rupiah)

Accounting Standards Effective in Current Year

The following are new standards, amendments of standards and interpretation of standard issued by

DSAK - 1Al and effectively applied for the period starting on or after January 1, 2015, as follows:

* ¢ ¢ & ¥ B & B T " "o

PSAK No. 1 (Revised 2013) "Presentation of Financial Statements”

PSAK No. 4 (Revised 2013) "Separate Financial Statements”

PSAK No. 15 {Revised 2013) “Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures”
PSAK No. 24 {Revised 2013} "Employee Benefits”

PSAK No. 46 (Revised 2013) “Income Taxes"

PSAK No. 48 {(Revised 2014) “Impairment of Assets”

PSAK No. 50 (Revised 2014} "Financial Instruments: Presentation’ :
PSAK No. 55 (Revised 2014) "Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”
PSAK No. 60 (Revised 2014) “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”

PSAK No. 65 "Consolidated Financial Statements”

PSAK No. 66 “Joint Arrangements”

PSAK No. 67 “Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities”

PSAK No. 68 "Fair Value Measurement"

ISAK No. 26 "Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives”

The following is the impact of the amendments in accounting standards that are relevant and significant
to the financial statements of the Company:

PSAK No. 1 {Revised 2013) "Presentation of Financial Statements”

PSAK No. 1 (Revised 2013) has introduce changes in the format and revision of the title of the

report. The significant impact of changes of this accounting standard to the The Company and

subsidiary, among others, are:

- Change of report title which previously named "Statement of Comprehensive Income” become
"Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income”

- Requirement for the presentation of other comprehensive income are The Company and
subsidiaryed into (a). items that will not be reclassified te profit or loss; and (b). items that will
be reclassified to profit or loss

This standard is applied retrospectively and certain comparative information have been restated,
accordingly.

PSAK No. 4 (Revised 2013) “Separate Financial Statements”

PSAK No. 4 (Revised 2009) “Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements” has been revised
and re-titled into PSAK No. 4 {Revised 2013} “Separate Financial Statements” which became a
standard only deals with requirement for separate financial statements. The existing guidance for
separate financial statements remains unchanged.

PSAK No. 24 (Revised 2013) “Employee Benefits”

This PSAK amending some accounting provisions related to defined benefit plans. The key
amendments include elimination of the “corridor approach”, modification of accounting for
termination benefits and improvement of the recognition, presentation and disclosure requiremants
for defined benefit plans.

Amended provisions that impacting the The Company and subsidiary's consolidated financial

statements are as follows:

a. the recognition of actuarial gains (losses) through other comprehensive income;

b. all past service cost is recognized as an expense at the earlier of the date when the
amendment/curtailment occurs or the date when the entity recognizes related restructuring
costs or termination benefits. Therefore the unvested past service cost is no longer be
deferred and recagnized over the vesting period.

c. interest expense and returns on plan assets used in the previous PSAK No. 24 is replaced by
the concept of net interest, which is calculated using a discount rate liabilities (assets) net
defined benefit as determined at the beginning of each annual reporting period.

-
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PT MINDA ASEAN AUTOMOTIVE AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For 3 (Three) Months Period Ended March 31, 2016 and

for the Years Ended December 31, 2015

{Expressed in Rupiah)

This amendments have been applied retrospectively (except for changes to the carrying value of
assels that include employee benefit costs in the carrying amount.

e PSAK No. 46 {(Revised 2013) “Income Taxes”
This PSAK No. 46 (Revised 2013) emphasize on measurement of deferred tax on assets
measured at fair value, assuming that the carrying amount of the assets will be recovered through
sales. In addition, this standard also removes provision on final tax.

The adoption of the revised standard had no material effect to the financial statements.

¢+ PSAK No. 48 {Revised 2014} “Impairment of Assets” -
Ghanges in PSAK No. 48 (Revised 2014), mainly to incorporate the changes in definition and
requirements of fair value as governed in PSAK No. 68.

The adoption of the revised standard had no material effect to the financial statements.

¢ PSAK No. 50 (Revised 2014) “Financial Instrument; Presentation®, PSAK No. 55 (Revised 2014)
“Financial Instrument: Recognition and Measuremen(’, and PSAK No. 60 (Revised 2014)
"Financial Instrument: I:')isclosures"

The amendment of these ‘PSAKs mainly related to the changes as an impact the issuance of
PSAK No. 68 concerning fair value.

PSAK No. 50 (Revised 2014) removing arrangement of income tax related to dividend and will
refer to PSAK+No. 46. Furthermore, PSAK No. 50 (Revised 2014} provides more specific
arrangement (application guidelines) related to the criteria for offsetting and net settlement of
financial asset and financial liability.

The changes in PSAK No. 55 {Revised 2014) deals with measurement and reclassification of
embedded derivative, arrangement of criteria and derecognition of hedging instrument, and
arrangement of date of recording financial instrument.

PSAK No. 60 (Revised 2014) deals with additional disclosures relates to the fair value, offetting
financial asset and liability, and transfers of financial assets.

The The Company and subsidiary had adopting these PSAKs and had completed the required
disclosures requirements.

» PSAK No. 65 “Consolidated Financial Statements”
This standard replaces all of the guidance on control and consolidation in PSAK No. 4 (Revised
2009) and ISAK No.7. The core principle that a consolidated entity presents a parent and its
subsidiaries as if they are a single economic entity remains unchanged, as do the consolidation
procedures.

PP IYPIIVIPOCLIITOCTLAOLTI DT O
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PSAK 65 introduces a single consolidation model that identifies control as the basis for
consolidation for all types of entities, where control is based on whether an investor has power over
the investee, exposure / rights to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and the
ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of the returns.

(1]

g @

The new standard also includes guidance on participating and protective rights and on agent -
(9 principal relationships.

@ The adoption of the PSAK No. 65 has no impact to the financial statements upon initial adoption,
as its scope of remains unchanged.
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PT MINDA ASEAN AUTOMOTIVE AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For 3 (Three) Months Period Ended March 31, 2016 and

for the Years Ended December 31, 2015

{Expressed in Rupiah)

2.¢. Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate financial statements of the Parent Entity and

Subsidiaries, direct and indirectly owned by the Parent Entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from

the date of effective control are achieved by the Parent Entity and will be no longer consolidated from

the date of the Parent Entity has cease effective controls. Control is presumed to exist when the parent

owns, directly or indirectly through subsidiaries, more than half of the voting power of an entity unless,

except that, such ownership does not constitute control. Contral alsc exists when the parent owns half

or less of the voting power of an entity when there is:

a) power over more than half of the voting rights by virtue of an agreement with other investors:

b} power to govern the financial and operating policies of the entity under a statute or an agreement;

¢) power to appoint or remove the majority of the members of the board of directors or equivalent
governing body and control of the entity is by that board or body; or

d) power to cast the majority of votes at meetings of the board of directors or equivalent governing
body and control of the entity is by that board or body.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform basis, i.e.: similar accounting policy
for similar transactions, events and circumstances. The policy has been applied consistently by
Subsidiaries, unless otherwise stated.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the financial statements of the Parent Company and
Subsidiaries are combined on a line by line basis by adding together similar elements of assels,
liabilities, equily, income and expenses. All material balances and transactions between the Parent
Company and the Subsidiaries have been eliminated.

The account of “Nor Controlling Interests in Subsidiaries” account represents interest of the minority
shareholders in the Subsidiaries. Non controfling interest in net income (loss) of Subsidiaries in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income is presented as "Current Year Profit/Loss Aftributable
to Non Controlling Interest”.

Losses of non-wholly owned subsidiary are atfributed to the non controlling interest even if the non
cantrolling interest results in deficit balance.

2.d.Forelgn Currency Transactions and Balances

2.e.

2f.

The Company maintains its accounting records in Rupiah. Transactions in currencies other than
Rupiah are recorded at end of previous month middle exchange rate quoted by Bank Indonesia.

At statements of financial position date, all monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are
translated into Rupiah by using middle rate of exchange published by Bank Indonesia at such date.

Exchange gains and losses arising from translations of foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities
are recognized in the currant year's statements of comprehensive income.

Exchange rates used as of March 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015 to translate the major foreign

currencies are as follows:
March 31, 2016 December 31, 2015

Rp Rp

ust1 13,276 13,795
EURA1 15,030 15,070

Cash Equivalents
Cash equivalents consists of time deposits with maturity of less than or equal to 3 (three) months and
are not pledged as collateral.

Financial Assets and Liabilities

Financial Assets

Financial assets are classified into four categories, as follows: (i) financial assefs at fair value through
profit or loss, {ii} loans and receivables, (iii) held-to-maturity financial assets and (iv) available-for-sale

9
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PT MINDA ASEAN AUTOMOTIVE AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

For 3 (Three) Months Period Ended March 31, 2016 and

for the Years Ended December 31, 2015
{Expressed in Rupiah)
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financial assets. The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired. Management determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

(i) Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Loans and receivables are initially recognized at fair value plus
transaction cost and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the efiective interest rate
method.

Loans and receivables include cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables from third parties,
other receivables from third parties, and other assets. B

Impairment of Financial Assets
Financial assets, other than those at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss (FVTPL), are assessed for
indicators of impairment at each financial position's reporting date. Financial assets are impaired when
there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the investment have been
impacted. For quoted and unquoted equity investments classified as AFS, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the equity investment below its cost is considered to be an objective
evidence of impairment,

Some objective evidence for impairment value are as follows:;

+ significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

»  abreach of contract, such as default or detinquency in interest or principal payments; or
+ it becoming prolable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganization.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as receivables, the impairment value of assels are
assessed individually. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Company's past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in
the portfolio past the average credit period as well as, and observable changes in the national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of impairment is the difference between the
assets’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
financial assets's original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is directly reduced by the amount of impairment loss for all
financial assets with the exception of receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. When a receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written-off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognized the
statement of income.

When an Available For Sale (AFS) financial asset is considered to be impaired, cumulative gains or
losses previously recognized in equity are reclassified to the statement of income in the current period.

With the exception of AFS equity instruments, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the
extent that the carrying amount of the investment on the date of the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortized cost would have been had the impairment not been recognized.

In respect of AFS equity instrument, impairment losses previously recognized in the statement of

income are not reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment
loss is recognized directly in equity.

10
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {(Continued)

For 3 {Three) Months Period Ended March 31, 2016 and
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(Expressed in Rupiah)
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Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified into the category of (i) financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss and (i) financial liabilities measured at amortized cost,

(i} Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost
Financial liabilities that are not classified as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
categorized and measured at amortized cost.

Financial liabilities which categorized into financial liabilities measured at amortized cost are short term
bank loan, trade payables to third parties, other payables to third parties, accrued expenses, and long
term bank loan. .

Fair value estirnation
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities must be estimated for recognition and
measurement or for disclosure purposes.

PSAK No. 60, "Financial Instruments: Disclosures” requires disclosure of fair value measurements by

level of the following fair value measurement hierarchy:

1) quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1)

2) inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
gither directly (as prices) or'indirectly (derived from prices) (Level 2), and

3) inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)
{Level 3).

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the
reporting date. The quoted markel price used for financial assets held by the Company is the current
bid price, while financial liabilities use ask price. These instruments are included in Level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximize the use of observable market data where it
is available and rely as minimum as possible an estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value
an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in Level 2.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using
valuation technigues. These valuation technigues maximize the use of observable market data where it
is available and rely as minimum as possible on estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value
an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in Level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is
included in Level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

+ the use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments; and

e other techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis, are used to determine fair value for the
remaining financial instruments.

Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and its net amount presented in the statement of
financial position only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amount; and intends
either to setfle on a net basis or to realize the assets and setile liabilities simultanecusly.

Derecognition
Derecognition of a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset

expire or when the financial asset has been transferred and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred (if, substantially all the risks and rewards are not fransferred, then the
Company will conduct an evaluation to ensure ongoing involvement of the controls which are still not
prevent derecognition).

"
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PT MINDA ASEAN AUTOMOTIVE AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For 3 {Three) Months Period Ended March 31, 2016 and

for the Years Ended December 31, 2015

{Expressed in Rupiah)

Financial liabilities are derecognized when the liability specified in the contract is discharged or
canceled or expire. If an existing financial liability is replaced by another liahility from the same lender
on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of original liabilities and the recognition of a new
liability, and the difference between the carrying amount of each financial liabilities are recognized in
the statement of comprehensive income.

Effective Interest Method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial instrument and
of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and others paid gr received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition,

2.9.Related Party Transactions

Related parties is a person or entity that is related to the entity that is preparing its financial statement
{reporting entity) that following criteria applies:
a. Aperson or aclose member of that persons family is related to a reporting entity if that person:
(i) Has control or joint control over the reporting entity;
iy Has significant influence over the reporting entity; or
(i} Is a member of the key management personnel of the reporting entity or of a parent of the
reporting entity.

b. An entity is relatad to the reporting entity if it meets one of the following:

(i) The entity and reporting entity are the same The Company and subsidiary member (which
means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others)

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate entity or joint
venture of a member The Company and subsidiary of which the other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint venture of the same third party.

{iv) An entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of sither the reporting
entity or an entity related to the reporting entity. If the reporting entity is itself such a plan, the
sponsaring employers are also related.

{vi) An entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in {(a).

{vii} A person identified in (a) {i} has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel.

2.h.Invantories

2.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value,

Cost is based on the first in first out method and comprises all costs and purchase, cost of conversion
and appropriate overheads incurred in bringing the inventories to its present location and condition.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and estimated cost necessary to make the sale.

i. Prepaid Expenses

Prepaid expenses are amorlized over their beneficial periods using the straight-line method.

Impairment of Non Financial Assets

The Company assess at each annual reporting period whether there is an indication that an asset may
be impaired. If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset (i.e., an
intangible asset with an indefinite useful life, an intangible asset not yet available for use, or goodwill
acquired in a business combination) is required, the Company makes an estimate of the assef’s
recoverabile amount.

12
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PT MINDA ASEAN AUTOMOTIVE AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

For 3 {Three) Months Period Ended March 31, 2016 and

for the Years Ended December 31, 2015
(Expressed in Rupiah)

An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's or Cash Generated Unit’s {CGU) fair value
less costs to sell and its value in use, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or The Company and
subsidiarys of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the
asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses of
continuing operations are recognized in the statements of comprehensive income as ‘impairment
losses”. In assessing the value in use, the estimated net future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pretax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. In delermining fair value less costs to sell, recent market
transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such ftransactions can be identified, an
appropriate valuation model is used to determine the fair value of the assets, These calculations are
corroborated by valuation multiples or other available fair value indicators.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, if any, are recognized in the statements of comprehensive
income under expense categories that are consistent with the funclions of the impaired assets.

An assessment is made at each annual reporting period as to whether there is any indication that
previously recognized impairment losses recognized for an asset other than goodwill may no longer
exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previausly recognized impairment loss for an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has
been a change in the assumplions used to determine the asset’s racoverable amount since the last
impairment loss was recognized. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its
recoverable amount. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed
its recoverable amount, nor exceeds the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior period.

Reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in the statements of comprehensive income. After such a
reversal, the depreciation charge on the said asset is adjusted in future periods to allocate the asset's
revised carrying amount, less any residual value, on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

2.k.Revenue and Expense Recognition

2.

Revenue is recognized when products are delivered to customers. Expenses are recognized when they
are incurred. Other income ara recognized when earned.

Income Taxes
Current tax expense is determined based on the taxable income for the year computed using prevailing

tax rates.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences atiributable fto
differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of assets and liabilties and their
respective tax bases except those differences that are subject to final tax. Deferred tax liabilities are
recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable income will be available in future
periods against which the deductible lemporary differences can be utilized.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted as of the
statement of financial position date. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the statement of income,
except when it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is
also dealt with in equity,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset in the consolidated statement of financial position, except
deferred tax assets and liabilittes of different entity in the same manner the current tax assets and
liabilities are presented.

Deferred tax assets and liability are offset if, and only if (a) the entity has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and (b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred
tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on the same taxable entity or
different taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or
to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

13
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PT MINDA ASEAN AUTOMOTIVE AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For 3 {Three) Months Period Ended March 31, 2016 and

for the Years Ended December 31, 2015

(Expressed in Rupiah)

2.m.

2.n.

Employee Benefits Obligation

Short-term Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognized when an empioyee has rendered service during
accounting period, at the undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in
exchange for that service,

Short term employee benefits include such as wages, salaries, bonus and incentive.

Post-employment Benefits
Post-employment benefits such as retirement, severance and service payments are calculated based

on Labor Law No. 13/2003 (“Law 13/2003"). -

The Company and subsidiary recognizes the amount of the net defined benefit liability at the present
value of the defined benefit abligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan
assets which calculated by independent actuaries using the Projected Unit Credit method. Present
value benefit obligation determine by discounting the benefit.

The Company and subsidiary account not only for its legal obligation under the formal terms of a
defined benefit plan, but also for any constructive obligation that arises from the entity's informal
practices. o

Current service cost, past service cost and gain or loss on seitlement, and net interets on the net
defined benefit liability {asset) are recognized in profit and loss.

The remeasurementof the net defined benefit liability (assets) comprises actuarial gains and losses,the
return on plan assets, and any change in effect of the asset ceiling are recognized in other
comprehensive income.

Property, Plant and Equipment
The Company and subsidiary had chosen the cost model as the accounting policy for their property,
plant and equipments measurement,

Property, plant and equipments are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss,
if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the property, ptant and equipments when that
cost is incurred, if the recognition criteria are met. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its
cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the property, plant and equipments as a replacement if the
recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repairs and mainienance costs that do not meet the
recognition criteria are recognized in the statements of comprehensive income as incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipments, except land, is computed using the straight-line
method aver the following estimated useful lifes.

Years
Buildings 20
Plant and Machineries 8
Office Equipments 8
Computers 4
Furniture and Fixtures 8
Dies and Tools 4
Vehicles 4

Land is stated at cost and not depreciated.
The cost of maintenance and repairs is charged as an expense as incurred. Expenditures which extend

the useful life of an asset or provide further economic benefits by increasing the capacity or quality of
production of the asset, are capitalized and depreciated based on the applicable depreciation rate.

14
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)
For 3 {Three) Months Period Ended March 31. 2016 and

for the Years Ended December 31, 2015

(Expressed in Rupiah)

An item of property, plant and equipments is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in the statement of com prehensive income in the period the asset is derecognized,

The residual values, useful lifes and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipments are
reviewed and adjusted praspectively, if appropriate, at the end of each financial period,

The accumulated costs of the construction of buildings and plant and the installation of machinery are
capitalized as construction in progress. These costs are reclassified to the appropriate property, plant
and equipments accounts when the construction or installation is cornp!etecf Depreciation is charged
from the date when the assets become available for their intended use

2.0.Use of Estimates

The preparation of Company and subsidiary’s financial statements requires managemeant to make
judgiments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. However,
uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities affected in future years.

The preparation of Company and subsidiary’s financial statements fequires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenuaes, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. However,
uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the cdirying amounts of asseis or liabilities affected in future years.

Determination of Functional Currency

In the process of applying Company and subsidiary’s accounting policies, management has made
judgment on the determination of functional currency, apart from those estimations and assumptions
which have the most significant effects on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial
statements.

The functional currency is the currency of the primary econemic environment in which each of them
operates. It is the currency, among others, that mainly influences sales prices for goods and services,
of the country whose compeltitive forces and regulations mainty determine the sales prices of its goods
and services, and the currency in which funds from financing activites are generated.

Determination of Fair Vatues of Financiai Assets and Financial Liabilities

When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the consolidated statements
of financial position cannot be derived from active markets, their fair value is determined using
valuation techniques including the discounted cash flow model. The inputs to these models are taken
from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is
required in establishing fair valuas.

The judgment includes consideration of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes
in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

Realization of Deferred Tax Assets

Company reviews the carrying amounts of deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting period and
reduce these fo the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable income will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized. Company assessment on the recognition of
deferred tax assets on deductible temporary differences is based on the level and timing of forecasted
taxable income of the subsequent reporting periods.

This forecast is based on Company past resuits and future expectations on revenues and expenses as
well as future tax planning strategies. However, there is no assurance that Company will generate
sufficient taxable income to allow ali or part of deferred tax assets to be utilized.
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Estimating Provision for Impairment Losses on Receivables

If there is objective evidence that an impairment Joss has been incurred on trade receivables, Company
estimate the provision for impairment losses related to their trade receivables that are specifically
identified as doubtful of collection. The level of provision is evaluated by management on the basis of
factors that affect the collectibility of the accounts. In these cases, Company use judgment based on
the best avallable facts and circumstances, including but not limited to, the length of Company
relationship with the customers and the customers’ credit status based on third-party credit reports and
known market factors, to record specific reserves for customers against amounts due in order to
reduce The Company and subsidiary's receivables to amounts that they expect to collect. These
specific reserves are re-evaluated and adjusted as additional information received affects the amounts
estimated. P

Uncertainity of Tax Exposure

In certain circumstances, Company and subsidiary’s may not be able to determine the exact amount of
their current or future tax liabilities due to ongoing investigations by, or negotiations with, the taxation
authority. Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations and the
amount and timing of future taxable income. In determining the amount to be recognized in respect of
an uncertain tax liability, Company apply similar considerations as they would use in determining the
amount of a provision to be recognized in accordance with PSAK 57, “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets”. Company make an analysis of all tax positions related to income taxes to
determine if a tax liability for unrecognized tax benefit should be recognized.

Interest and penalties for the underpayment of income tax, if any, are presented under Other Income
(Expenses) as part of "Others - net” in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income,

Estimated of Useful Life

The Company and subsidiary's reviews on useful life of property, plant and equipments based on
several factors i.e. technical conditions and technology development in the future. Operating results in
the future will be affected by the estimated changes of those factors (See Note @ for carrying value of
property, plant and equipments),

Post Employment Benefit

The present value of post employment benefit depends on several factors which are determined by
actuarial basis based on several assumptions. Assumptions used to determine pension costs (benefits)
covered discount rate. The changes of assumption might affect carrying value of post employment
benefit.

Impairment of Non Financial Assets

In accordance with Company and subsidiary’s accounting policy, each asset or Cash Generated Unit
(CGU) s evaluated every reporting period to determine whether there are any indications of
impairment. If any such indication exists, a formal estimate of recoverable amount is performed and an
impairment loss is recognized to the extent that the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating The Company and subsidiary of assets is
measured at the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

The determination of fair value and value in use requires management to make estimates and
assumptions about expecied production and sales volumes, commodity prices (considering current and
historical prices, price trends and related factors), reserves, operating costs, closure and rehabilitation
costs and future capital expenditure, these estimates and assumptions are subject to risk and
uncertainty; hence there is a possibility that changes in circumstances will alter these projections,
which may have an impact on the recoverable amount of the assets. In such circumstances, some or
all of the carrying value of the assets may be further impaired or the impairment charge reduced with
the impact recorded in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

16
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3. Cash and Cash Equivalents

March 31, 2016 December 31, 20.15
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Cash on Hand 288,154,242 213,767,540
Cash in Banks
Rupiah
PT Bank Permata Thk 840,803,994 670,450,988
PT Bank Mandiri (Persero) Thk BB 271,121 485,271,546
PT Bank CIMB Niaga Tbik 808,185,160 74,795,562

2,035,260,274

1,230,518,006

US Dollar
PT Bank Permala Tbk 557,367,767 2,204,701,035
PT Bank Mandiri (Persero) Tbk 728,492,223 806,899,210
PT Bank CIMB Niaga Tbk -~ 40,855,824

Subtotal

Time Deposiis
Rupiah

1,285,859,990

3,051,456,069

3,321,120,264

4,281,974,165

PT Bank Permata Tbk * 6,000,000,000 27,100,000,000
PT Bank Mandiri (Persero} Thk 4,500,000 000 3,000,000,000
PT Bank CIMB Niaga Tbk 2,500,000,000 2,000,000,000
Subtotal 13,000,000,000 32,100,000,000
Total 16,609,274,507 36,595,731,705

Interest Rate on Time Depeosits per Year

Maturity period

4. Trade Receivables

1% - 8.75%
3 Months

7% - 9%
3 Months

March 31, 2016

December 31, 2015

Rp Rp

Related Parties (Note 28)
Foreign - USD 1,665,614,527 77,698,958
Third Parties
Lacal - Rupiah 27,B89,323,765 20,297,530,279
Foreign - USD 2,576,918,862 3,139,163,714

30,466,242 627 23,436,693,993
Total 32,131,857.,155 23,514,392,951
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PT MINDA ASEAN AUTOMOTIVE AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOQLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

For 3 {Three) Months Period Ended March 31, 2016 and

for the Years Ended December 31, 2015
(Expressed in Rupiah)

Details of accounts receivable aging schedule as of March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2015 are as
follows:
March 31, 2016 December 31, 2015

Rp Rp
Less than 31 Days 31,0086,341,395 22,496,078,247
31 - 60 Days 870,017,729 442,460,595
61 - 90 Days 236,808,488 255,081,561
91 - 120 Days 9,621,117 248,652,889
More than 120 Days 8,978,426 72,119,659
Total 32,131,857,155 23,514,392,951

As of March 31, 2016 significant amount of trade receivables consist of current outstanding, thus the
Management believes that all receivables are collectible and a provision for impairment losses is not
considereshard necessary.

Trade receivable and inventories amounting to Rp40,000,000,000 are pledged as collateral for bank loans
{Notes 12 and 16).

Inventories
March 31, 2016 December 31, 2015
Rp Rp
Raw Materials and Components (Note 21) 7,993,893,347 7,613,981,454
Work In Process {Note 21} 1,227,271,987 1,395,174,088
Finished Goods {Note 21) 3,497,163,468 3,614,774,452

Total 12,718,328,802 12,623,929,094

As of March 31, 2016 the Company's inventories were insured with PT Asuransi Wahana Tata,
PT Asuransi FPG Indonesia, PT Asuransi Rama Salria Wibawa and PT Asuransi Central Asia all risks with
sum insured of USD765,000 and period covered from September 23, 2015 to September 23, 2016. The
Management believes that the insurance coverage is adeguale to cover possible losses on the assels
insured.

Trade receivable and inventories amounting to Rp40,000,000,000 are pledged as collateral for bank loans
(Notes 12 and 16).

6. Taxation

a. Prepaid Taxes
March 31, 2016 Decemher 31, 2016

Rp Rp
The Company
Article 21 1,685,625 --
1,685,625 -
Subsidiary
Corporate Income Tax Ardicle 28A;

2011 264,125,615 264,125,615
Value Added Tax - Net 802,102,424 891,761,435
Article 21 290,237 -
Others Prepaid Tax 1,310,341,837 1,310,341.837

2,376,0860,113 2,466,228,887
Total 2,378,545,738 2,466,228,887

Other prepaid tax represents Income Tax Article 25 for the year 2011, which is still on appeal againts of
tax.

18
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PT MINDA ASEAN AUTOMOTIVE AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

For 3 (Three) Months Period Ended March 31, 2016 and
for the Years Ended December 31, 2015

{Expressed in Rupiah)

b. Taxes Payable
March 31, 2016 December 31, 2015
Rp Rp
The Company
Income Taxes:
Article 21 171,903,115 601,670,627
Article 23 15,981,463 15,508,126
Article 25 230,995,106 230,995,106
Article 26 575,417,343 430,714,284
Article 29 728,679,861 781,519,295
Value Added Tax 968,025,822 447,661,831
2,711,002,710 2,508,067,269
Subsidiary
Income Taxes:
Article 21 10,557,067 70,828 593
Article 23 296,800 526,600
Article 25 ) 5.473,035 5,473,035
Article 29 ‘ 1,439,133 26,662,060
Article 4 (2) 900,000 -
18,665,835 103,590,288
Total 2,729,668 545 2,611 ,657&
¢. Corporate Income Tax
2016 2015
{3 Months) (1 Year)
Rp Rp

Current Tax

The Company (1,642,498,179)
Current Tax Adjusment from Prior Period -
Subsidiary (101,839,238)

(4,762,128,308)
(151,545,204)
(341,020,690)

(1,744,337,417)

(5,254,694,202})

Deferred Tax

The Company 77,028,249 300,868,726
Subsidiary 493,092 2,293,762

77,522,241 303,162,488
Total (1,666,815,176} (4,951,531,714)

The recongiliation between income before income tax as shown in the statements of profit or loss and
the estimated taxable income of the Company for the period ended March 31, 2016 and for the year

ended December 31, 2015 is as follows:
2016
{3 Months}
Rp

2015
(1 Year)
Rp

6,559,472,463
(423,525,800)

Consclidated Profit Before Tax
Profit Before Tax of Subsidiaries

26,793,505,193
{1,189,401,873)

Profit Before Tax of the Company 6,135,946,683

25,604,103,320
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PT MINDA ASEAN AUTOMOTIVE AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

For 3 (Three) Months Period Ended March 31, 2016 and
for the Years Ended December 31, 2015
{Expressed in Rupiah)

Final Taxable Income;
Inlerest Income

2016 2015
(3 Months) {1 Year)
Rp Rp

(441,661,843)

(710,498,312)

Others Income {9,000,000) {11,887,005,094)
Timing Difference:
Employee Benefils 308,112,997 1,203,474,904
Permanant Differences: -
Entertainment 9,449,804 1,729,758,476
Medical 78,231,999 335,133,244
Rent - 5,230,612
Guest House 15,139,558 68,648,812
Tax Expense 19,781,901 1,176,225,843
Festival { Ceremony ) Expense - 167,557,769
Staf Welfare Expense 59,385,221 316,272,335
Other Expenses ¢ 394,606,495 1,049,611,323
434,046,033 {6,555,590,088)

Taxable Income - Net

Current Tax Expenses (with Applicable Rate of 25%)

6,569,992,716

19,048,5613,232

1,642,498,179

4,762,128,308

TIII®ECQTIIVITOIOLETEEOLO OO
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Less: Prapaid Corporate Income Tax

Arlicle 22 220,833,000 1,188,636,000
Article 25 692,985,318 2,791,973,013
913,818,318 3,980,609,013

Tax Payable of Corporate income Tax 728,679,861 781,519,295

d. Deferred Tax Assets

Charged to Other Charged o Other

Cradited to Profit Credlted to Profit

December 31, Comprahensive Comprehensive
2014 orLoss Income Decearg“h;r 3, orLoss Income March 31, 2016
{1 Year) {1 Year) {3 Menths) (3 Manihs)
Rp Rp Rp Rp Rp
The Companv
Employse Bonelit 821,252,373 300,868,726 {131,156,908) 990,964,189 77.028,249 {81,597 870} 996,384,569
Subsidiaries
Employes Benafit 6,696,191 2,293,162 {4,215,341} 4,874,612 433,992 (633,342) 4,335,262
Tolal 828,148,564 303,162,488 {135,372,250) 995,938,601 77,522,241 {82,231,212) 991,229,831
7. Prepaid Expenses
March 31, 2016 Decembrer 31, 2015
Rp Rp
Insurance 206,497 427 349,011,952
Total 206,497,427 _ 3& 011,952
20
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FT MINDA ASEAN AUTOMOTIVE AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Gontinued)
For 3 {Three) Months Period Ended March 31, 2016 and

for the Years Ended December 31, 2015

{Expressed in Rupiah)

8. Advances

Advance to suppliers as of March 31, 2016 for consist of purchasing new machineries, tools and raw
materials amounted to Rp2,926,511,035 and as of December 31, 2015 consist of purchasing new
machineries, tools and raw materials amounted to Rp3,395,126,072

9, Other Receivables

March 21, 2016 December 31, 2015

Rp . Rp
Third Parties
Others Receivable-Global Mazinkert SLU 30,217,830,832 6,047,043,523
Employee Recsivables 969,629,379 1,178,348,148
Others (each below Rp15,000,000) 253,816,864 296,640,146

7,522,031,817

Total 31,441,277,095
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In January 2015, PT Minda Asean Automotive lend fund to Global Mazinkert S.L.U amounted Euro 380,000
with interest rate 8.5% p.a and 5.75% p.a which effective from august 1, 2015 for one year period.

In March 2016 PT Minda Asean Automotive has added loan to Global Mazinkert S.L.U became amounted
Euro 1,600,000 with interest rate 5,.75% p.a which effective from august 1, 2015 for one year peariod these
loans are repayable on demand.

Employee receivables n':lainly represent loan which given by the company to support the rental house for
expatriates on their demand. The payment of these receivables is deducted from the monthly salaries.

10. Property, Plant and Equipment
2016 {3 Months)
Beginning Additions Disposals Adjustment Ending
Balance Balance
Rp Rp Rp Rp Rp

Acquisition Cost
Land 7.090.694,600 - - - 7.090,694 600
Buildings 38,329,274,173 - - - 38,329,274,173
Plant and Machineries 38,167,347 458 377,864,500 - - 38,545,211,958
Dies and Tools 15,963,006,947 72,033,600 - - 16,035,040,547
Furnitures and Fixtures 3,175,093,713 18,890,000 - - 3,193,983713
Computers 3,028,797 870 29,850,000 - - 3,058,647 870
Office Equipments 2,813,493.21% - - - 2,813.493.219
Vehicles 2,911,812 085 - - - 2.911,812,085

111.479,520,065 498,638,100 - - 111,978,158,166
Acgumulated Depreciation
Buildings 13,858,103,104 479,115,927 - - 14,337,219,031
Plant and Machineries 17,126,235.815 897,301,725 - - 18,023,537 ,540
Dies and Tools 11,660,210,355 491,766,432 -- - 12,151,976,787
Fumitures and Fixtures 1,737,717.814 67,046,179 - - 1,804,763,993
Computers 2,466,415,215 83,868,429 - - 2,550,283,644
Office Equipments 1,941,161 975 51,833,181 - - 1,092,795,156
Vehicles 2,372,507,639 93,835,824 - - 2,466,343,463

Carrying Amount

51,162,351,917

2,164,567,697

53,326,919,614

60,317,168,148

e
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PT MINDA ASEAN AUTOMOTIVE AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

For 3 {Three) Months Period Ended March 31, 2016 and

for the Years Ended December 31, 2015
(Expressed in Rupiah)

2015 {1 Year)

Beginning Additions Digposals Adjustment Ending
Balance Balance
Rp Rp Rp Rp Rp

Acquisition Cost
Land 16,179,064,506 - 9,088,369,906 - 7,090,684,600
Buildings 37,968,312,798 360,961,375 - - 38,329,274, 173
Plant and Machineries 26,516,358,314 11,650,989,144 - -~ 3B167.347.458
Dies and Tools 14,234,076,843 1,728,930,104 - . - 15,963,008,947
Furnitures and Fixtures 2,853,022,841 322,070,772 - P - 3175003713
Computers 2,806,742,188 222,055,684 - - 3,028,707,870
Office Equipments 2,.484,913,301 328,579,888 - - 2,813,493,219
Vehicles 3,989,189,358 - 1,077,377,273 - 2.911.812,085

107,031,660,278 14,613,586 ,967 10,165,747,179 -~ 111,479,520,065
Accumulated Dapreciation
Buildings 11,954,298,798 1,803,804,306 - - 13,858,103,104
Plant and Machineries 14,359,108,071 2,767 127,744 - - 17,126,235,815
Dies and Tools 9.746,665.214 1,913,545,141 - - 11,660,210,355
Furnitures and Fixtures 1.470.2598,1 58 267,419,656 - - 1,737, 717.814
Compulers 2,162,960,512 303,454,703 - - 2,466,415,215
Office Equipments 1,714,741,526 226,420,450 -- - 1,241,161,975
Vehicles 2,537,689,341 809,880,794 1,007,626,704 32,564,208 2,372,507 639

43,045,961,619 8,191,652,794 1,007,826,704 32,564,208 51,162,351,917
Carrying Amount 63,085,718,659 60,317,166,148

Land represents usage rights (HGB) for a maximum period of 20 years and could be extended.

As of March 31, 2016 the property, plant and equipment (exclude vehicles) were insured to PT Asuransi
Wahana Tata, PT Asuransi FPG Indonesia, PT Asuransi Rama Satria Wibawa and PT Asuransi Central
Asia against all risks and earthquake for USD10,850,000 and period covered from September 23, 2015
o September 23, 2016. As of March 31, 2016, Vehicle was insured to PT Asuransi Allianz Utama
Indonesia against all risks for Rp2,946,000,000 and period covered from May 4, 2015 to May 4, 2016.
Management believes that the insurance coverage is adequate to cover possible losses on the assets
insure,

Land and Building amounting to Rp27,562,500,000, are pledged as collateral for bank loans. Machineries
and Equipments amounting to Rp19,607,000,000 and Rp38,512,000,000, are pledged as collateral for
bank loans {(Notes 12 and 16).

Detail of gain sale of property, plant and equipments are as follows:

2016 2015
{3 Months) {1 Year}
Rp Rp
Selling Praceeds -~ 21,325,375,000
Carrying values :
Land - (9,088,369,906)
Vehicle - (102,114,775)
- 12,134,880,319
Depreciation expenses were allocated as follows:
2016 2015
{3 Months) {1 Year)
Rp Rp
Cost of Goods Sold {Note 21) 1,868,429,133 6,585,457,392
General and Administrative Expenses (Note 22) 296,138,564 1,606,195,404
Total 2.164,567,607 __ 8,191,852,796
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PT MINDA ASEAN AUTOMOTIVE AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

For 3 (Three} Months Period Ended March 31, 2016 and
for the Years Ended December 31, 2015
{Expressed in Rupiah)

11. Other Asseots
Other assets represent security deposit amounted Rp66,836,454 and Rp87,074,664 as of March 31, 2016
and December 31, 2015, respectively,
12. Short-Term Bank Loans
March 31, 2016 Decamber 31, 2015
Rp Rp

Rupiah .

PT Bank Permata Thk 4,447 567,356 4,406,210,822
Total  4,447,567,356 4,406,210,822
This represents facilities obtained by the Company as follows :

1. Revolving loan credit facility with credit limit of USD1,000,000 with credit term for 1 year from the
signing dale of credit agreement, which dated on October 5, 2015 and maturity dated on October 5,
2016.

2. The facility bear interest rate at 5.50%.pa.

3. The objective of this facility is te finance the purchase of raw materials from suppliers.

4, This loan facility is secured by collateral such as:

a. Land and Building — the current production facility amounting to Rp27,562,500,000.

b. Land and Buiding - expansion from the current production facility amounting to
Rp29,187,500,000.

¢. Machineries an¢ Equipments amounting toe Rp19,607,000,000. and Rp36,512,000,000

d. Account Receivable / Inventory amounting to Rp40,000,000,000

5. The Company should be maintain several negative covenant as disclosed in credit agreement

such as;
a. Total debt to EBITDA ratio of a maximum of 3X
b. Current Ratio
* FYE 211 : min 0,60X
»  FYE 2012-201€ : min 1X
¢. Interest Coverage Ratio (Anualisasi) any time not less than 3X
d. The consolidated equity at any time not less than USD 30 billion
e. DSRC any time not less than 1,50X
f. DER:
2011 : Max 2,50X
2012 : Max 2,00X
2013-2016 :1,00X
All collateral located in JI. Permata Raya Lot CA/7, Kawasan Industri KIIC, Karawang Barat 41361, Jawa
Barat, Indonesia.
13. Trade Payables
March 31, 2016 December 31, 2015
Rp Rp

Related Parties

Foreign - US Dallar { Note 28) 4,070,951,280 2,626,130,344

Third Party

Local - Rupiah 21,875,063,9G7 15,217,176,450

Foreign - US Dollar 6,490,566,958 6,692,534,000

28,365,630,865 22,609,710,450

Total 32,436,582,145 25,235,840,794

Trade payables represent payable for purchases of raw materials and trading goods.
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PT MINDA ASEAN AUTOMOTIVE AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

For 3 (Three) Months Period Ended March 31, 2016 and

for the Years Ended December 31, 2015
{Expressed in Rupiah)

14. Other Payables to Third Parties

March 31, 2016 December 31, 2015
Rp Rp

Forelgn - USC 131,737,482 —
Total 131,737,482 --

Other payables mainly represent sales return from subsidiary to customer,

15. Accrued Expenses )
March 31, 2016 Dacamber 31, 2015
Rp Rp
Royalty 2,434,433,396 1,706,344,935
Salaries 765,408,285 780,238,338
Others (each below Rp100,000,000) 197,420,482 172,386,252
Total 3,397,262,163 2,658,968,525

16.

Accrued royalty represents Company’s liabilities to Minda Industries Limited and Minda Corporation Limited
for technical know-how as per agreement at 7.5% of sales of self-produced goods until March 31, 2015 and
decrease became at 5% of sales of self-produced goods from April 1, 2015.

Long Term Bank Loans

. March 31, 2016 December 31, 215

Rp Rp
PT Bank Parmata Tbk 6,414,628,512 9,511,221,958
Current Maturities 6,414,628,512 9,403,016,584
Long term Bank Loans - Nat -- 108,205,374

This represents facilities obtained by the Company as follows :
1. Commited term loan sub limit credit facility with credit limit of USD3,500,000 with credit term for four
year which will fall due in July 27, 2016
2. The facility bear interest rate at 5.25%.pa.
3. The objective of this facility is to finance plant expansion in Kawasan International Industry City,
Karawang Barat.
4. This loan facility is secured by collateral such as:
a. Land and Building — the current production facility amounting to Rp27,562,500,000.
b. Land and Building - expansion from the current production facility amounting fo
Rp29,187,500,000.
¢. Machineries and Equipments amounting to Rp19,607,000,000 and Rp36,512,000,000.
d. Account Receivable / Inventory amounting to Rp40,000,000,000.
5. The Company should be maintain several negative covenant as disclosed in credit agreement
such as:
a. Total debt to EBIT DA ratio of a maximum of 3X
b. Current Ratio
=  FYE 2011 : min 0,60X
= FYE 2012-2016 : min 1X
Interest Coverage Ratio {Anualisasi) any time not less than 3X
The consolidated equity at any time not less than IDR 30 billion
DSRC any time not less than 1,50X
DER:
2011 : Max 2,50X
2012 : Max 2,00X
2013-2016 :1,00X

All collateral located in JI. Permata Raya Lot CA/7, Kawasan Industri KIIC, Karawang Barat 41361, Jawa
Baralt, (ndonesia.
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PT MINDA ASEAN AUTOMOTIVE AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

For 3 {Three) Months Period Ended March 31, 2016 and
for the Years Ended December 31, 2018
(Expressed in Rupiah)

17. Post-Employee Beneofits Liabilities

March 31, 2016 December 31, 2015
Rp Rp
Employee Benefit Liability:
The Company 3,945 578,274 3,963,856,757
Subsidiary 19,341,046 19,898,449 -

3,964,919,320 3,883,755,206

The Company provides employee benefits obligation based on Labor Law No. 13/2003 dated March 25,
2003. The benefits are unfunded. p

1. The Company
Calculation of all factors is commonly called the actuarial present value. The actuarial valuation at the

expense of pension PT Minda Asean Automotive respectively on March 31, 2016 and December 31, 2014
conducted by PT Bumi Dharma Aktuaria, an independent actuary , in its report respectively on March 31,
2016 and December 31, 2015 in accordance with PSAK 24 (Revised 2013) using the Projected Unit Credit

consider the following assumptions :
March 31, 2016 Decamber 31, 2015

Discount Rate - 9.20% 8.60%
Salary Increase Rate ! 10.00% 10.00%
Mortality Rate TMI 2011 Tivit 2011
Disabhility Rate 10% x TMI-2011 10% x TMI-2011
Pension Age Normal 56 55

The movement in actuafpresent value of obligation for 3 (Three) months period ended March 31, 2016 and
for the years ended December 31, 2015 are as follow:

2016 2015
(3 Months) {1 Year)
Rp Rp
Actual Present Value of Obligation at Beginning of Year 3,963,856,757 3,285,009,490
Current Service Cost 222,690,077 924,249,097
inlerest Cost 85,222,920 273,225,807
Acluarial (Gain) Loss on Obligalion {326,391,480) (524,627,638)
Present Value of Obligation at End of Year - Actual 3,945,578,274 3,963,856,757

Net benefit expense for 3 (Three) months period ended March 31, 2016 and for the year ended
December 31, 2015 based on actuarial valuation are as follow:

2016 2015 |
(3 Months) (1 Year) :
Rp Rp
Current Service Cost 222,890,077 924,249,097
Interest incame {Net} 85,222,920 279,225,807
Net benefit expense 308,112,097 1,203,474,%04

The movement in the employee benefit liability for 3 (Three) months period ended March 31, 2016 and for

the year ended December 31, 2015 are as follows:
March 31, 2016 December 31, 2015

{2 Months) (1 Year)
Rp Rp
Beginning Balance 3,983,856,757 3,285,009,491
Total Expense Racorded
at Income Statement 308,112,997 1,203,474,904
at Other Comprehensive Income {326,391,480) {524,627,638)
Ending Balance 3,045,578,274 3,063,856,757
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PT MINDA ASEAN AUTOMOTIVE AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

For 3 (Three) Months Period Ended March 31, 2016 and
for the Years Ended December 31, 2015
(Expressed in Rupiah)

The movement in actuarial gain (losses) for 3 (Three) months period ended March 31, 2016 and for the
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year ended December 31, 2015 are as follows:

2016 2015
(3 Months) (1 Year)
Rp Rp

Other Comprehensive Income

Beginning of Year 10,382,241 (614,245,397)
Other Comprehensive Income

for the PeriodfYear 326,391,480 524,627,638
Total 338,773,721 10,382,241

s

. Subsidiary

Calculation of all factors is commonly called the actuarial present value. The actuarial valuation at the
expense of pension PT Minda Trading respectively on March 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015 conducted
by PT. Bumi Dharma Aktuaria, an independent actuary, in its report respectively on March 31, 2016 and
December 31, 2015 in accordance with PSAK 24 (Revised 2013} using the Projected Unit Credit consider

the following assumptions :
March 31, 2016

December 31, 2015

Discount Rate ] 9,20% 8,50%
Salary Increase Rate . 10,00% 10,00%
Mortality Rate T™MI 2011 TMI 2011

Disabilily Rate 10% x TMI-2011
Pension Age Normal 55

10% x TMI-2011

55

The movement in actuarpresent value of obligation for 3 (Three) months period ended March 31, 2016 and

for the year ended December 31, 2015 are as follow:

2016 2015
{3 Months) (1 Year)
Rp Rp
Actual Present Value of Obligation at Beginning of Year 19,898,449 27,584,763
Currenl Service Cost 1,553,124 6,968,269
Interest Cost 422,842 2,206,781
Actuarial (Gain) Loss on Obligation (2,5633,368) {16,861,364)
Present Value of Obligation at End of Year - Actual 19,341,046 19,898,449

Net benefit expense for 3 (Three) months period ended March 31, 2016 and for the year ended

Decemirer 31, 2015 based on actuarial valuation are as follow:

2016 2015
(3 Months) {1 Year}
Rp Rp
Curmrent Service Cost 1,663,124 6,968,269
Interest income (Net} 422 842 2,206,781
Net benefit expense 1,975,966 2,175,050

The Movemenlt in the employee benefit liability for 3 (Three) Months period ended March 31, 2016 and for

the year ended December 31, 2015 as follows:

2016 2015
{3 Months) (1 Year)
Rp Rp

Beginning Balance 19,898,448 27,584,762
Total Expense Recorded

at Income Statement 1,975,966 9,175,050

at Other Comprehensive Income {2,533,368) {(16,861,364)
Ending Balance 19,341,046 19,898,448
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PT MINDA ASEAN AUTOMOTIVE AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For 3 (Three) Months Period Ended March 31, 2016 and

for the Years Ended December 31, 2015

{Expressed in Rupiah)

The movement in actuarial gain (losses) for 3 (Three) months period ended March 31, 2016 and for the
year ended December 31, 2015 are as follows:

2016 2015
{3 Months) (1 Year}
Rp Rp

Other Comprehensive Income

Beginning of Year 196,581,077 179,719,713
Other Comprehensive Income -

for the Period/Year 2,533,368 16,861,364
Total 199,114,445 196,581,077

18. Share Capital

a.

Based on Circular Resolution of the Shareholders of the Company dated August 28 2015 which had
been put forth into Notarial Deed No. 03 dated August 28, 2015, by Notary Hesti pudjiastuti, among
others decided the tranfer of shares ownership of Minda Investment Limited amounted to 13,845
shares to Minda Industries Limited. Therefore, the Company's Shareholders as of March 31, 2016
are as follows:

Shareholders Number of Percentage of Issued and
- Shares Ownership Paid- in Capital
% Rp
SAM Global Pte., Ltd, 39,000 37 3,575,520,000
Minda Industries Limiled 34,095 32 3,125,829,600
Minda Investment Limited 33,405 M 3,062,570,400
Total 106,500 100 9,763,920,000

Based on the shareholders' written resolution in lieu of the annual general meeting of shareholders
dated June 19, 2015, the shareholders approved to declare dividends for 2014, Dividends were
distributed fo :

March 31, 20186 December 31,2015

Rp Rp
Minda Investments Lid - 1,732,752,000
SAM Global PTE Ltd - 1,430,208,000
Minda Industries Lid -- 742,608,000
Total -- 3,305,568,000

The exchange rate difference from paid-up capital amounted to Rp1,160,985,000 represents
exchange rate difference on paid-in capital as a result of differences in the rates of exchange at the
time of receipt of capital contributions in US Dollar and rate of exchange as per the Company’s
Articles of Association.
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PT MINDA ASEAN AUTOMOTIVE AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

For 3 (Three) Months Period Ended March 31, 2016 and
for the Years Ended December 31, 2015
{Expressed in Rupiah)

19. Retained Earnings

Retained Earning consist of;

Retained Eamnings

Other Comprehensive Income Accumulated - net after tax
Acluarial Gain {Note 18)

Total

March 31, 2015

Dacamber 31, 2015

Rp Rp
93,213,449,897 88.324,014,39
400,422,768 153,748,130
83,613,872,663 88,477,762,526

s

Retained earnings represents the accumulative balance of profit or loss after deducting dividends and the

appropriation of reserve through annual general meeting of shareholders's decision (if any).

Other comprehensive income represents actuarial gain which is derived from the measurement of post-

employment benefit.

20, Sales
. 201¢ 2015
(3 Months) {1 Year)
Rp Rp
Local - Net 62,747,956,287 202,490,626,731
Export » 5,564,351,422 22 531,286,503
Net 68,312,307,709 225,021,913,234

21. Cost of Goods Sold

Manufacturing Cost:
Direct Material
Beginning Invenlory - Raw Materials and Components
Purchases
Plating and Rework
Freight and Handling Charges
Customn Duty
Ending Inventory - Raw Matarials and Components (Note 5)

Direct Labor
Wages
Overtime
THR and Bonus
Transportation
Catering
Casual Expenses
Jamsostek
BPJS
Uniform
Medical

28

2016 2015
(3 Months) {1 Year)
Rp Rp

7,613,981,454
32,082,693,195
901,537,056
564,719,116
507,954,160
(7,993,893,347)

9,380,201,778
76,010,741,652
2,319,163,749
2,536,640,241
1,574,041,314
(7,613,981,454)

33,676,991,633

84,215,807 280

3,536,988,254
687,332,984
345,978,291
249,925,428
256,172,686
181,107,068
128,127,115
7,528,000
9,820,000

12,711,153,951
2,234,980,728
1,551,865,021
1,378,138,184
956,376,569
732,109,913
656,510,881
446,123,510
84,009,000

5,402,979,826

20,751,267,757
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PT MINDA ASEAN AUTOMOTIVE AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

For 3 (Three) Months Period Ended March 31, 2016 and

for the Years Ended December 31, 2015
(Expressed in Rupiah}

Factory Overhead
Consumplions
Depreclation {Note 10)
Electricily, Fuel & Power
Salary for Production Staffs
Testing Charges

Repair and Maintenance for Production
Production Staffs Allowance and Bonus

Total Manufacturing Costs

Work In Process
Beginning Balance

2016 2015
(3 Months) (1 Year)

Rp Rp
1,284,833,206 15,400,548,750
1,868,429,133 6,585,457,392

563,802,822 2,254,420,790

076,225,242 2,248,587 466

84,216,380 - 1,660,659,227

283,005,118 796,200,884

- 341,947,981
4,760,511,812 29,287,822 490
43,840,483,372 134,254,807,527
1,395,174,088 716,556,750

Ending Balance (Noia 5) (1,227,271,987) {1,395,174,088)
Cost of Goods Manufactured o, 44,008,385,473 133,576,280,189
Finished Goods

Beginning Balance 3,614,774,452 3,461,877,718

Purchases 6,232,848,170 23,398,173,093

Freight and Handling Charges 160,428,250 434,714,158

Custom Duty 75,123,000 192,559,000

Ending Balance (Note 5) (3,497,163,468) (3,614,774,457)
Total Cost of Goods Sold 50,594,395,877 157,447,829,706

22. General and Administrative Expenses
2016 2015
{3 Months) (1 Year)
Rp Rp
4,353,056,838 16,808,485,948

Salary, Allowance and Bonus
Rayaity
Professional Fee

Transportation, Travelling and Forwarding

Employee Benefit (Note 17)
Depreciation (Note 10}
Working Permit Expense
Security

Postage and Stationery

Office Running, Repair and Maintenance

Insurance

Telephone and Water
Jamsostek JHT Contribution
Cleaning Expense

Medical

Siaf Welfare Expense
Estale Service Fee

2,889,716,745
1,062,037,680
925,479,498
310,088,963
296,138,565
219,229,356
216,162,200
161,285,660
160,016,665
153,955,757
108,151,976
80,230,223
75,935,838
74,525,313
£9,615,221
57,397,200

29

8,651,827,855
4,832,815,908
3,358,301,650
1,212,649,954
1,606,195,404
588,785,680
825,917,350
502,237,810
914,667,311
652,911,356
450,938,142
266,491,654
283,747 478
342,726,304
322,689,768
326,066,000
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PT MINDA ASEAN AUTOMOTIVE AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

For 3 (Three) Months Period Ended March 31, 2016 and

for the Years Ended December 31, 2015

{Expressed in Rupiah)

Courier Expense
Taxation

Bank Facility Fee
Relocation Expenses

Others (each below Rp200,000,000)

Total

23. Selling Expenses

2016 2015
{3 Months) {1 Year)

Rp Rp
39,717,072 307,542,449
19,781,901 1,177,225,843

- 254,731,840
- 208,847,785
906,639,624

222,837,789

11,487,260,459

44,802,443,153

2016 2015
{3 Months) {1 Year}
Rp Rp
Entertainment 217,259,320 2,549,502,113
Prormotion 141,571,563 355,716,437
Warranty Claim 14,469,137 349,615,431
Total 373,300,020 3,254,833,981
24, Other Income {(Expensés) - Net
2016 2015
{3 Months) (1 Year)
- Rp Rp
Other Income
Gain On Sale of property, plant and equipments - 12,134,890,319
Bank Interests 309,711,487 404,938,398
Gain on Foreign Exchange 660,085,581 -
Others 70,004,777 466,815,763

Other Expenses

Loss on Foreign Exchange
Intarest on Bank Loan
Bank Charges

Others Expenses

Total - Net

25. Monetary Assets and Liabilities in Foreign Currency

1,039,801,845

13,006,644,480

(317,449,354)
(20,231,350)

(3,051,940,740)
(2,359,535,170)
(164,929,770)
(153,540,000)

(337,680,713)

(5,729,945,680)

702,121,131

7,276,698,800

Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents USD
Trade Receivables usD
Other Raceivables EUR

Total Assels

March 31, 2016

December 31, 2015

Equivalent to Rp Foreign Currency Equivalent to Rp Foreign Currency

1,285,869,990 96,856 3,051,456,089 221,200
4,242,5633,390 319,564 3.216,862,672 233,190
30,217,830,832 2,010,532 6,047,043,623 401,272
36,746,224, 212 2,426,953 12,315,362,263 865,663
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PT MINDA ASEAN AUTOMOTIVE AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For 3 (Three) Months Period Ended March 31, 2016 and

for the Years Ended December 31, 2015

(Expressed in Rupiah)

26,

March 31, 20116 December 31, 2015

_Equivalent to Rp Foreign Currency Equivalent to Rp Foreign Currency
Liabilities
Trade Payables uso 10,561,518,238 795,635 9,318,664,344 675,510
Other Payables usD 131,737,482 9,923 - -
Accrued Expenses uUsD 2,434,433 396 183,371 1,706,344,935 123,693
Long Term Bank Loans usD 6,414,628 512 483,175 9,511,221,958 689,469
Total Liabilities 19,542,317 628 1,472,003 20,536,231,237 1,488,672
Net Assets {Liabilities) 16,203,906,584 954,949 (9,271,106,734) (633,009)

Financial Instruments and Financial Risks Management

The Company is exposed to financial risks arising from its operations and the use of financial instruments.
The key financial risks include market risk (which includes currency risk and interest risk), liquidity risk and
credit risk. The Directors carried out their financial risks management in accordance with established
policies and procedures,

(i) Market Risk '

a.

Currency Risk
The Company has an exposure to currency risk as its trade accounts receivable is denominated in
both US Dollar and Indonesian Rupiah. Below is the detail of accounts which is denominated in
USD, as follows:

March 31, 2015 December 31, 2015

Equivalent Rp Equivalent Rp
uUsD
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalenis 1,285,859,990 3,051,456,069
Trade Receivables 4,242 533,390 3,216,862,672
Other Receivables 30,217,830,832 6,047,043,523
Liabilities
Trade Payables 10,561,518,238 9,318,664,344
Other Payables 131,737,482 --
Accrued Expenses 2,434,433,396 1,706,344,935
Long Term Bank Loans 6,414,628,512 9,511,221,958

Faollowing is the sensitivity to a 100 basis point change in exchange rate of functional currency of
US Dollar and Euro against significant outstanding non-functional currency as of March 31, 2016
and December 31, 2015, with other variables held constant, of the Company after tax. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and
adjust their translation at the period end for a 100 basis point change in foreign currency rate:

Change In Effect on Profit
Currency Rate after Tax
March 31, 2016 December 31, 2015
Rp Rp
usD + 100 bp 78,576,878 77,012,842
EUR + 100 bp 201,053,249 40,127,232

Interest Rate Risk

Interest on the cash flow risk is the risk that future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates. The Company exposure to interest rate is
considered low when viewed from the side of the balance sheet, but continue to monitor these
companies to minimize the negative impact on the company. Borrowings issued at variable
interest rates expose the company to cash flows from interest rate risk.

31
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PT MINDA ASEAN AUTOMOTIVE AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For 3 (Three) Months Period Ended March 31, 2016 and
for the Years Ended December 31, 2015

{Expressed in Rupiah)

(ii)

March 31, 2016
Floatln_g Interest Rate
Currant Hon Currant Non Interest Total
Bearing
Re Rp Rp Rp
Liability
Trade Payable lo Related Parllies - 4,070,951,280 4,070,951,260
Trade Payable 1o Third Parlies - 28,365,630,865 28.365,630,885
Accrued Expense - 3,497,262,193 3,397,262,163
Current Maluritles of Long Term Bank Loan 6.414,628,512 == 8.414,628,512

Tuotal Financial Liablily 6,414,628,512

= 31,762,633,028

-~

Dacember 31, 2015

36,177,521,540

Figating Interest Rate

Currant Nan Gurrent Non Interest Total
Bearing
Rp Rp Rp Rp
Lability
Trade Payabls lo Related Pariies - - 2.626,130,344 2.626,130,344
Trads Payable {o Third Parlies - 22,609,710,450 22,609,710,450
Accruad Expanse - - 2,G58,960,525 2.656,968,525
Qther Payable ' - - - -
Current Malurilies of Long Term Bank Loan 9,403,016,584 - - 0,402,016,584
Long-Term Bank Loans - Met of Current Maturities = 108,205,374 - 108,205,374
Tatal Financial Liability 9,403,016,584 108,205,374 25,280,678,975 17,406,034,277
Change Effect on Profit
-
in after Tax
- Interest March 31, 2106 December 31, 2015
Rp Rp
Rupiah + 50 bp 32,073,143 47,556,110
Liquidity Risk

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, by continuous forecast and

cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

The following table represents the liquidity analysis of financial instruments as of March 31, 2016 and
December 31, 2015 based on exposure on due date on undiscounted contractual maturities for all
non-derivative financial assets and liabilities. The contractual maturity is based on the earliest date on

which the Company may be required to pay.

March 31, 2016

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Trade Receivables
Other Receivables from Third Parties

32,141,857,155
31,441,277,095

Within One Year  Within One Year
Rp Rp
16,609,274,507 -

Total

80,182,408,756

Trade Payable to Third Parlies

Accrued Expense

Other Payables

Current Maturities of Long Term - Bank Loan
Long-Term Bank Laans - Net of Current Maturities

28,365,630,865
3,397,262,163
131,737,482
6.414,628,512

Total
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PT MINDA ASEAN AUTOMOTIVE AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)
For 3 (Three) Months Period Ended March 31, 2016 and

for the Years Ended December 31, 2015
(Expressed in Rupiah)

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Trade Racslvables

Other Receivables from Third Parties

Total

Trade Payable to Third Parlies
Accrued Expense
Other Payables

Current Maturities of Long Term - Bank Loan
Long-Term Bank Loans - Net of Gurrent Maturities

Total

(i) Credit Risk

December 31, 2015

Within One Year  Within One Year

Rp

Rp

36,5956,731,705 -
23,436,603,993 -
7,522,031,817 -

67,554,457,515 --

22,809,710,450 -
2,0658,968,525 -

9,403,016,584 -

108,205,374 -

Financial assets that are potentially subject to concentrations of credit risk and failures by
counterparties (o discharge their obligations in full or in a timely manner consist principally of cash

balances with banks and receivables.

Financial instruments of the Company which are potentially exposed to credit risk are cash in banks
and trade accounts receivables. The maximum exposure to credit risk is equal to its carrying value.

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities, together with the carrying amounts, are as follow:

.

Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalenis
Trade Receivables
Other Receivables

Total

Financial Liabilities
Trade Payables
Accrded Expense
Other Payables
Long Term Bank Leans

Total

Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Trade Receivables
Other Receivables

Total

Financial Liabilities
Trade Payable to Third Parties
Accrued Expense
Long Term Bank Loans

Total

March 31, 2016

Carrying Value Fair Value
Rp Rp
16,609,274,507 16,608,274,507
32,131,857,155 32,131,857,155
30,217,830,832 30,217,830,832

78,958,962,493

28,365,630,865
3,397,262,163
131,737 482
6,414,628,512

78,950,962,483

28,365,630,865
3,387,262,163
131,737,482
6,414,628,512

31,894,630,510

31,884,630,510

December 31, 2015

Carrying Value Fair Value
Rp Rp
36,595,731,705 36,595,731,705
23,436,693,993 23,436,693,993
6,047,043,523 6,047,043,523
66,079,469,221 _66,079,469,221

22.609,710,450
2,658.968,525
9.511,221,958

22,609,710,450
2,658,968,525
9,511,221,958

34,779,900,933

33
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PT MINDA ASEAN AUTOMOTIVE AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

For 3 {Three) Months Period Ended March 31, 2016 and
for the Years Ended December 31, 2015
(Expressed in Rupiah)

27. Capital Management

The Company purpose in managing capital is to protect the ability of the entity in maintaining business
continuity, so that entities can still deliver results for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and
to provide adequate relurns to shareholders by pricing products and services that are commensurate with
the level of rigk.

The Company set a number of capitais in proportion to the risk. The Company manages its capitai
sfructure and makes adjustments taking into account changes in economic conditions and risk
characteristics of the underlying asset. Consistent with other companies in the industry, the Company
monitors capital on the basis of the ratio of adjusted debt to capital. This ratio is calculated as follows: net
debt divided by adjusted capital. Net debt is lotal debt (as the amount in the statement of financial
position) less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted capital comprises all components of equity (including
capital stock, foreign exchange transiation adjustment of foreign currency and retained earnings). During
the year 2015, the Company's strategy has not changed, namely, to maintain the debt to equity ratio at
maximum 0,5:1. The ratio of debt to equity as at March 31, 2016 are as follows:

March 31, 2015 December 31, 2015

Rp Rp
Short-term Liabilities 49,557 446,202 44,315,604,282
Long-term Liabilities 3,964,919,320 4,091 960,581
Total Liabilities 53,522,365,522 48,407,654,863
Total Equity 104,599,231,072 99,459,880,129
Debt to Equity Ratle  * 0.5:1 0.5:1
28. Related Parties Transactions

a. Nature of Relationships

Company Name Type of Relationship Transaction

Minda Industries Ltd Shareholder Purchases, Sales
b. Details of Transactions with Related Parties:

% of % of
March 31, 2015 Total Assets/ Dacember 31, 2015 Total Assets/
Liablities! Liaklities!
Sales/ Sales/
Rp Cost of Good Sold Rp Cost of Good Sold

Trade Receivables 1,665,614,527 5,18% 77,698,956 0,33%

Trade Payable 4,070,951,280 12,55% 2,626,130,344 10,41%

Sales 1,738,762,334 2.55% 79,766,500 0.04%

Purchase 6,057,155,947 11.97% 16,538,928,436 10,50%

29. New Prospective Accounting Standards

Standards and interpretations issued not vet adopted

Standard and improvements to standards effective for periods beginning on or after January 1, 20186, with
eaily application permitted as are follows;

Standard
PSAK 110 {revised 2015): Accounting for Sukuk
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PT MINDA ASEAN AUTOMOTIVE AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For 3 (Three) Months Period Ended March 31, 2016 and

for the Years Ended Dacember 31, 2015

{Expressed in Rupiah)

Adjusment

PSAK 5: Operating Segments

PSAK 7: Related Party Disclosures

PSAK 13: Investments Property

PSAK 16: Property, Plant and Equipment

PSAK 19: Intangible Assets

PSAK 22: Business Combination _

PSAK 25: Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
PSAK 53: Share-based Payments

PSAK 68: Fair Value Measurement

* & & & 4 0 8

-

Amendments to standards and interpretation which are effective for periods beginning on or after January

1, 2016, with refrospective application are as follows:

+ PSAK 4: Separate Financial Statements about Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements,

s+ PSAK 15: Investment in Associates and Joint Venture about Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception,

« PSAK 24: Employee Benefits about Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions,

» PSAK65: Consolidation Financial Slatements about Investment Entities: Applying the
Consalidation Exception, -

» PSAK 67; Disclosures of Ihierest in Other Entties about investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception, and

e [SAK 30: Levies

Amendments to standards and interpretation which are effective for periods beginning on or afler January

1, 2016, with prospective application are as follows:

» PSAK 16: Property, Plant and Equipment about Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation
and Amaortization,

¢ PSAK 19: Intangible Asset about Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and
Amortization, and

¢ PSAK 66: Joint Arrangements about Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint QOperation,

Amendments to standard and interpretation effective for periods beginning on or after January 1, 2017,
with early application permitted are amendments to PSAK 1: Presentation of Financial Statements about
Disclosure Initiative and 1SAK 31, Scape Interpretation of PSAK 13: Investment Property.

Standard and amendment to standard effective for periods beginning an or after January 1, 2018, with
early application permitted are PSAK 69: Agriculture and amendments to PSAK 16: Property, Plant and
Equipment about Agriculture: Bearer Plants.

As at the authorisation date of this financial statements, the Company and Subsidiary is still evaluating the
potential impact of these new and revised standards to the consolidated financial statements.

30. Completion of the Consolldated Financial Statements

Management of the Company is responsible for preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial
statements. The consolidated financial statements has been authorized for issuance by the Directors on
April 29, 2016.
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